
Page 1 of 2 
 

 

 
 

AGENDA 
REGULAR MEETING 

 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center 
1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
 

Wednesday, January 24, 2018 
CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 
REGULAR SESSION – 7:00 PM 

 

CLOSED SESSION – 6:00 PM 

1. In Closed Session Pursuant to Government Code Section 54957 - Public Employee 
Performance 

 Title: City Manager 

PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE AND ROLL CALL 

ADOPTION OF AGENDA  

PRESENTATION 

• Get Us Moving 

• Police Department End of Year Review 

PUBLIC COMMENTS  

Comments on the Consent Calendar and Non-Agenda Items will be heard at this time. 
Comments on Agenda Items will be heard when the item is called. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

2. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Reauthorizing Ordinance No. 669 (Codified as Sections 4.08.500 
Through 4.08.570 of Subchapter 4.08 - Cable System, Open Video, Telecommunications and 
Franchises), Including the Fee Paid to the Town By State Video Franchise Holders for Public, 
Educational, and Government Access Purposes, and Amending Section 4.08.560 of the Colma 
Municipal Code (Second Reading). 

3. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the January 10, 2018 Regular Meeting. 

STUDY SESSION 

4. COLMA SYSTEMIC SAFETY ANALYSIS REPORT (SSAR) ROLLOUT  

This item is for discussion only; no action will be taken at this meeting. 

 



Page 2 of 2 
 

5. SERRAMONTE BOULEVARD AND COLLINS AVENUE MASTER PLAN STUDY SESSION  

This item is for discussion only; no action will be taken at this meeting. 

NEW BUSINESS 

6. STERLING PARK RECREATION CENTER IMPROVEMENTS – CONCEPT DESIGN  

Consider: Motion to Approve a Concept Design to Expand the Playground, Picnic Area and 
Create Exercise Stations at Sterling Park Recreation Center.  

7. 2018 ADULT HOLIDAY EVENT 

Consider: Motion Directing City Manager to Plan and Coordinate an Adult Holiday Event at the 
South San Francisco Conference Center on December 8, 2018; To Determine the Guest List for 
the Adult Holiday Event; To Set the Participation Fee for the Adult Holiday Event at $15 for 
Adults and $10 for Seniors and Disabled; and to Plan and Coordinate the Annual Town Picnic for 
September 8, 2018.   
 

REPORTS 

Mayor/City Council       

City Manager          

ADJOURNMENT 
The City Council Meeting Agenda Packet and supporting documents are available for review at the Colma Town Hall, 1188 El 
Camino Real, Colma, CA during normal business hours (Mon – Fri 8am-5pm). Persons interested in obtaining an agenda via e-
mail should call Caitlin Corley at 650-997-8300 or email a request to ccorley@colma.ca.gov.  

Reasonable Accommodation 
Upon request, this publication will be made available in appropriate alternative formats to persons with disabilities, as required 
by the Americans with Disabilities Act of 1990. Any person with a disability, who requires a modification or accommodation to 
view the agenda, should direct such a request to Brian Dossey, ADA Coordinator, at 650-997-8300 or 
brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov. Please allow two business days for your request to be processed. 

mailto:ccorley@colma.ca.gov
mailto:brian.dossey@colma.ca.gov


1. In Closed Session under Government Code § 54957, Public Employee
Performance

Title: City Manager 

There is no staff report for this item. 

Item #1



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Ord. No. ___ - Reauthorizing PEG Fee (Introduced 01/10/2018) Page 1 of 3 

ORDINANCE NO. ________ 
OF THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE TOWN OF COLMA 

AN ORDINANCE REAUTHORIZING ORDINANCE NO. 669 (CODIFIED AS 
SECTIONS 4.08.500 THROUGH 4.08.570 OF SUBCHAPTER 4.08 - CABLE 

SYSTEM, OPEN VIDEO, TELECOMMUNICATIONS AND FRANCHISES), 
INCLUDING THE FEE PAID TO THE TOWN BY STATE VIDEO FRANCHISE 

HOLDERS FOR PUBLIC, EDUCATIONAL, AND GOVERNMENT ACCESS PURPOSES, 
AND AMENDING SECTION 4.08.560 OF THE COLMA MUNICIPAL CODE 

The City Council of the Town of Colma does ordain as follows: 

ARTICLE 1. RECITALS. 

(a) In 2006, the Digital Infrastructure and Video Competition Act was signed into law and 
codified at California Public Utilities Code section 5800, et seq., (“DIVCA”); and 

(b) DIVCA established a state video franchising system that replaced local cable franchising 
but also recognized the continued need to protect local revenues and control of public rights of 
way; and  

(c) DIVCA provides that state video franchises are issued by the California Public Utilities 
Commission (“CPUC”) and have a stated term of 10 years; and  

(d) DIVCA provides that a local entity may, by ordinance, establish a fee to support public 
access, educational and governmental (“PEG”) purposes payable by state video franchise 
holders; and 

(e) In 2008, the City Council of the Town of Colma (“Colma”) adopted Ordinance No. 669, 
adding Sections 4.08.500 through 4.08.570 to Subchapter 4.08 (Cable System, Open Video, 
Telecommunications and Franchises) of the Colma Municipal Code (“Municipal Code”), in order 
to implement its limited authority over state video franchise holders pursuant to DIVCA, which 
included adoption of a PEG fee payable by state video franchise holders in the amount of one 
percent (1%) of gross revenues; and  

(f) The State video franchises of Comcast and AT&T currently entitle them to serve Colma, 
and have either recently expired and been renewed by the CPUC, or will expire and may be 
renewed in the future; and 

(g) DIVCA provides that the ordinance establishing a PEG fee shall expire, and may be 
reauthorized, upon the expiration of the state franchise, but there is uncertainty as to what 
circumstance, if any, the provision applies to Colma’s PEG fee; and 

(h) To the extent any action is required of Colma, it is deemed to be in the best interests of 
Colma to adopt an ordinance reauthorizing Ordinance No. 669, and amending Section 4.08.560 
so that as each state video franchise expires and is renewed by the CPUC now and in future 
years, state video franchise holders continue to pay PEG fees. 

Item #2



Ord. No. ___ - Reauthorizing PEG Fee (Introduced 01/10/2018) Page 2 of 3 

 

ARTICLE 2. INCORPORATION OF RECITALS. 

The City Council hereby finds that all of the foregoing recitals and the staff report presented 
herewith are true and correct and are hereby incorporated and adopted as findings of the City 
Council as if fully set forth herein. 
 

ARTICLE 3. AMENDMENTS TO CMC CHAPTER4.08 

To the extent reauthorization is required by law, Ordinance No. 669, adding Sections 4.08.500 
through 4.08.570 of this Subchapter 4.08 (Cable System, Open Video, Telecommunications and 
Franchises), is hereby reauthorized, and further Section 4.08.560 is amended by adding the 
following subsection (5) to Section 4.08.560(b):  

 
(5) To the extent reauthorization is required by law, Sections 4.08.500 

through 4.08.570 of this subchapter, including the PEG fee specified in 
this subsection (b) in the amount of one percent (1%) of gross revenues, 
are automatically reauthorized as to each affected state video franchise 
holder upon the expiration of any state video franchise. Any and all 
reauthorizations shall be effective for so long as such reauthorization is 
required by law. 

 
 

 
ARTICLE 4. SEVERABILITY. 
 
If any section, sentence, clause or phrase of this Ordinance or the application thereof to any 
entity, person or circumstance is held for any reason to be invalid or unconstitutional, such 
invalidity or unconstitutionality shall not affect other provisions or applications of this Ordinance 
which can be given effect without the invalid provision or application, and to this end the 
provisions of this Ordinance are severable.  The Town Council of the Town of Colma hereby 
declares that it would have adopted this Ordinance and each section, sentence, clause or 
phrase thereof, irrespective of the fact that any one or more section, subsections, sentences, 
clauses or phrases be declared invalid or unconstitutional. 
 

 
ARTICLE 5. NOT A CEQA PROJECT. 
 
This Ordinance is not a project within the meaning of Section 15378 of the State of California 
Environmental Quality Act (“CEQA”) Guidelines, because it has no potential for resulting in 
physical change in the environment, directly or indirectly.  The City Council further finds, under 
Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations, Section 15061(b)(3), that this Ordinance is 
nonetheless exempt from the requirements of CEQA in that the activity is covered by the 
general rule that CEQA applies only to projects which have the potential for causing a 
significant effect on the environment.  Where it can be seen with certainty that there is no 
possibility that the activity in question may have a significant effect on the environment, the 



Ord. No. ___ - Reauthorizing PEG Fee (Introduced 01/10/2018) Page 3 of 3 

activity is not subject to CEQA.  The City Council, therefore, directs that a Notice of Exemption 
be filed with the County Clerk of the County of San Mateo in accordance with CEQA Guidelines.   
 

 
ARTICLE 6. EFFECTIVE DATE. 

 
This Ordinance shall be posted on the three (3) official bulletin boards of the Town of Colma 
and within fifteen (15) days of its passage and is to take effect thirty (30) days after its 
passage. 

 
CERTIFICATION OF ADOPTION 
 
I certify that the foregoing Ordinance No. ____ was introduced at an adjourned regular meeting 
of the City Council of the Town of Colma held on January 10 2018, and duly adopted at a 
regular meeting of said City Council held on _____ __, 20__ by the following vote: 
 

Name Counted toward Quorum Not Counted toward Quorum 

  Aye No Abstain Present, Recused  Absent 

Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      

Joanne F. del Rosario      

John Irish Goodwin      

Diana Colvin      

Helen Fisicaro      

Voting Tally      

 
Dated ___________________________ _________________________________________ 
      Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Mayor 
 
 
    Attest:  ________________________________________ 
      Caitlin Corley, City Clerk 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Page 1 of 5 

MINUTES 
REGULAR MEETING 

City Council of the Town of Colma 
Colma Community Center, 1520 Hillside Boulevard 

Colma, CA 94014 
Wednesday, January 10, 2018 

7:00 p.m.  

CALL TO ORDER 

Mayor Raquel Gonzalez called the Regular Meeting of the City Council to order at 7:02 p.m. 

Council Present – Mayor Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez, Vice Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario, Council 
Members John Irish Goodwin, Diana Colvin and Helen Fisicaro were present.  

Staff Present – City Manager Brian Dossey, City Attorney Christopher Diaz, Police Chief Kirk 
Stratton, Commander Sherwin Lum, Recreation Manager Cynthia Morquecho, Deputy City 
Attorney Amanda Charne, Contract Director of Public Works Brad Donohue, Contract City 
Planner Michael Laughlin, Contract Assistant Planner Jonathan Kwan, Project Manager 
Mahan Bozorginia and Administrative Technician Darcy De Leon were in attendance.  

ADOPTION OF THE AGENDA 

Mayor Gonzalez asked if there were any changes to the agenda. None were requested. The 
Mayor asked for a motion to adopt the agenda. 

Action: Council Member Colvin moved to adopt the agenda; the motion was seconded by 
Vice Mayor del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
Aye No Abstain Not Participating 

Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor  
Joanne F. del Rosario  
John Irish Goodwin  
Diana Colvin  
Helen Fisicaro  

5 0 

PRESENTATION 

Vice Mayor Joanne F. del Rosario was sworn in by Mayor Raquel Gonzalez. 

Recreation Manager Cynthia Morquecho introduced new Recreation employees: Yvette 
Gomez, Jose Ascencio and Angelica Vigil. 

Commander Sherwin Lum introduced and swear in new Police Dispatcher: Thelma Coffey. 

Recreation Manager Cynthia Morquecho presented the Holiday House Decorating Contest 
Winners: Christian, Edizel and Xander Manela; Mary Murphy; Teena Rodriguez and 
Christian Huertas 

Contract Public Works Director Brad Donohue presented a farewell certificate to Mike Cully. 

Item #3



 

Page 2 of 5 
 

PUBLIC COMMENTS 

Mayor Gonzalez opened the public comment period at 7:28 p.m. Resident Eric Chyn made a 
comment about a smoking issue in the Verano neighborhood. The Mayor closed the public 
comment at 7:33 p.m. 

CONSENT CALENDAR 

1. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the December 12, 2017 Special Meeting. 

2. Motion to Accept the Minutes from the December 13, 2017 Regular Meeting. 

3. Motion to Approve Report of Checks Paid for December 2017.  

4. Motion to Adopt an Ordinance Amending Colma Municipal Code Subchapter 1.16 
Regarding a Reserve Police Officer Program. 

5. Motion to Accept Informational Report on Recreation Department Programs, Activities, 
Events, and Trips for the Fourth Quarter of 2017. 

6. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving and Authorizing the Execution of the Pooled 
Liability Assurance Network [Plan] Joint Exercise of Powers Agreement. 

7. Motion to Adopt a Resolution Approving and Authorizing the City Manager to Execute a 
Non-Exclusive Easement Agreement (Air Rights) for Serra Center Pursuant to CEQA 
Guideline 15311. 

Action: Vice Mayor del Rosario moved to approve the Consent Calendar items #1 through 
7; the motion was seconded by Council Member Goodwin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
 5 0    

PUBLIC HEARING 

8. DAVEY TREE EXPERT COMPANY CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT 

Before introducing Contract Planner Jonathan Kwan, City Attorney, Chris Diaz notified the 
public about the changes to the staff report, resolution and the recusal of Council Member 
Goodwin. 

Assistant Planner presented the staff report. Mayor Gonzalez opened the public comment 
period at 7:42 p.m. Resident Patricia Simpson made a comment. The Mayor closed the 
public comment at 7:43 p.m. Council discussion followed.  

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt a Resolution Approving an Amended 
Conditional Use Permit for a Landscape Contractor’s Yard, Modular Office, and the Storage 
of Landscaping Materials at Holy Cross Cemetery Pursuant to CEQA Guideline 15301; the 
motion was seconded by Vice Mayor del Rosario and carried by the following vote: 

 



 

Page 3 of 5 
 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
 4 0    

9. ORDINANCE REAUTHORIZING ORDINANCE NO. 669 

City Attorney Christopher Diaz presented the staff report. Mayor Gonzalez opened the public 
comment period at 7:54 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public comment period. Council discussion followed.  

Action: Council Member Goodwin moved to Introduce an Ordinance Reauthorizing 
Ordinance No. 669 (Codified as Sections 4.08.500 Through 4.08.570 of Subchapter 4.08 - 
Cable System, Open Video, Telecommunications and Franchises), Including the Fee Paid to 
the Town By State Video Franchise Holders For Public, Educational, and Government Access 
Purposes, and Amending Section 4.08.560 of the Colma Municipal Code; the motion was 
seconded by Council Member Colvin and carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
 5 0    

NEW BUSINESS 

10. ADDITION OF ONE RECREATION COORDINATOR POSITION  

City Manager Brian Dossey presented the staff report. Mayor Gonzalez opened the public 
comment period at 8:02 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the 
public comment period. Council discussion followed.  

Action: Vice Mayor del Rosario moved to Adopt a Resolution Authorizing the Hiring of One 
Additional Recreation Coordinator Position for a Total of Two to the Recreation Services 
Department; the motion was seconded by Council Member Goodwin and carried by the 
following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
 5 0    



 

Page 4 of 5 
 

11. TOWN HALL PROJECT - FURNITURE, FIXTURES AND EQUIPMENT - BASIS OF 
DESIGN AND CONTRACT DOCUMENTS  

Project Manager Mahan Bozorginia presented the staff report. Council asked questions 
during presentation. Mayor Gonzalez opened the public comment period at 8:49 p.m. and 
seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public comment period.  

Action: Council Member Fisicaro moved to Adopt Resolution Approving Basis of Design and 
Contract Documents for the Furniture, Fixtures and Equipment “FF&E” Project (Phase 5 Of 
The Town Hall Renovation Project) and Authorizing Staff to Advertise Notice Inviting Bids 
From Contractors for Said Project; the motion was seconded by Vice Mayor del Rosario and 
carried by the following vote: 

Name Voting Present, Not Voting Absent 
 Aye No Abstain Not Participating   
Raquel Gonzalez, Mayor      
Joanne F. del Rosario      
John Irish Goodwin      
Diana Colvin      
Helen Fisicaro      
 5 0    

STUDY SESSION 

12. CANNABIS ORDINANCE STUDY SESSION  

This was a two-part presentation. First, Deputy City Attorney Amanda Charne presented, 
followed by City Planner Michael Laughlin. Mayor Gonzalez opened the public comment 
period at 9:32 p.m. and seeing no one come forward to speak, she closed the public 
comment. Council discussion followed.  

This item was for discussion only; no action was taken at this meeting. 

COUNCIL CALENDARING 

The next Regular City Council Meeting will be on Wednesday, January 24, 2018 and 
February 14, 2018 at 7:00 p.m. 

REPORTS 

Raquel “Rae” Gonzalez  
 Council of Cities Dinner, 12/15/17 
 
John Irish Goodwin 
 Council of Cities Dinner, 12/15/17 
 
Diana Colvin 

Council of Cities Dinner, 12/15/17 
 
Helen Fisicaro 

Council of Cities Dinner, 12/15/17  

City Manager Brian Dossey gave a report: 



 

Page 5 of 5 
 

• City Manager asked Council if a closed session could be scheduled for January 24 at 
6:00 p.m.  

• The Recreation Department will begin offering inclusive cooking classes for all 
youth. 

• Town received a check from BART for $81,000 in lieu of repaired roads. 
• January 15, 2018 most Town departments will be closed in observance of Martin 

Luther King Jr. Day. 

ADJOURNMENT  

Mayor Gonzalez adjourned the meeting at 9:44 p.m. in memory of Pete Liebengood, husband to 
former Redwood City Mayor Alicia Aguirre; Gloria Pieruccini, mother of resident Janet Fisicaro and 
close relative of Councilmember Helen Fisicaro; and Jack Anderson, owner of CRES (Commercial 
Real Estate Service) which oversees Serra Shopping Center. 

 
Respectfully submitted, 
 
 
Darcy De Leon 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report Study Session  Page 1 of 3 
January 24, 2018

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Brad Donohue, Director of Public Works, CSG Consultants 

Abdulkader Hashem, Project Manager, CSG Consultants 

VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager  

MEETING DATE: January 24, 2018 

SUBJECT: Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) Rollout  

RECOMMENDATION 

This item is a study session for informational purposes only. No City Council action is required; 
however, staff seeks comments, questions, impressions and opinions from each Council 
member regarding the project. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Kittelson & Associates was selected to prepare the Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report 
(SSAR). The SSAR will identify and prioritize safety improvement projects that are eligible for 
Highway Safety Improvement Program (HSIP) funds and other safety funding programs for 
implementation. 

The purpose of the SSAR project is to evaluate a number of major arterials and collectors within 
the Town’s roadway network, utilizing a proactive safety analysis approach to hopefully prevent 
future roadway fatalities and injuries that have and or can occur within Town’s roadway system. 
The final work product of the SSAR is Colma Traffic Safety Plan; this plan will identify traffic, 
pedestrian and bicycle safety issues and concerns. Once these safety issues are identified, the 
report will recommend the proper countermeasures (individual elements of standard safety 
improvements) to correct the safety issue. The purpose of the study session is to allow the 
consultant to provide an overview of the project and update on activities to the City Council and 
Public so as to obtain preliminary feedback from the City Council on the project and roadway 
safety concerns.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 

ANALYSIS 

The purpose of the Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) is to provide a detailed analysis 
that will provide implementation of safety measures across the Town that will enhance safety 

Item #4



Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report Study Session  Page 2 of 3 
January 24, 2018 
 

for all modes of transportation (vehicles, bicycles and pedestrians). The project involves a 
safety analysis study for several major arterials and collectors within the Town’s roadway 
network. These corridors include El Camino Real, Junipero Serra Boulevard, Hillside Boulevard, 
Serramonte Boulevard, Mission Road, Collins Avenue, Colma Boulevard, Lawndale Boulevard 
and F Street.   

The SSAR will include the assessment of the existing road conditions, traffic count, evaluation 
of crash data and types, development and selection of low-cost countermeasures, prioritization 
of proposed safety improvements for implementation based on higher benefit-cost ratio 
calculations, and preliminary engineering design of selected safety projects for up to five (5) 
locations. 

The scope of services requested for this project includes the following works:  

1. Analyze crash data to determine crash patterns by location, type of crash, 
roadway/intersection types, roadway characteristics, types of road users, 
and any circumstance of the crash which would lead to potential 
countermeasure identification. In addition, analyze roadway characteristics 
to determine the risk factors associated with nominal safety design to aid in 
potential countermeasure identification and strategies. 

2. Develop a listing of potential countermeasures based on safety issues 
through systemic analysis and discussions with Town staff, City Council, and 
key stakeholders. Participants in these discussions will be asked to address 
the “4 E’s” of roadway safety: Engineering, Education, Enforcement and 
Emergency Services. 

3. Develop Colma Traffic Safety Plan as a final product of Systemic Safety 
Analysis Report (SSAR). This document will summarize the existing 
conditions, list safety projects in a prioritized manner by location, and 
recommend strategies for improving safety throughout the Town.   

4. Develop detailed scope for priority projects to apply for HSIP Cycle funds. 
The scope will include vicinity/location map, countermeasures being applied, 
crash data and diagrams, benefits summary, benefit/cost ratio calculations, 
project narrative, and preliminary engineering design for up to five safety 
projects.  

 
The SSAR project is anticipated to take approximately (8) months to complete (May 2018). 
Currently the consultant team has completed document review (review of documents, policies, 
and safety research that relates to the Town’s SSAR), data collection including; crash data, 
roadway characteristics; and traffic count, and first round of community engagement activities 
(public outreach and surveys). With the information that has been obtained, Kittelson & 
Associates is currently working on data analysis and identifying potential safety 
countermeasures for high-risk locations. They will hold a community outreach workshop next 
month, end of February, to discuss the selected prioritized list of safety 
treatment/countermeasures.  



Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report Study Session  Page 3 of 3 
January 24, 2018 
 

The purpose of tonight’s study session is to inform the City Council and Public of the current 
state of affairs with the SSAR, update the City Council of what will be requested of those who 
attend the community outreach workshop. Staff and Consultant are also requesting any input 
from the City Council and Public on what they would like addressed at the upcoming community 
workshop.  

Once this phase of the project is complete (estimated by early April 2018), staff will come back 
to the City Council for a final update on the SSAR for review and comment in a Study Session 
format. This meeting is proposed to be in late April 2018.  

Council Adopted Values 

The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility in improving the 
safety features on and along the major arterials and collectors within the Town’s roadways 
network. 

 
Sustainability Impact 

 
Future safety improvements to Colma roadways will be consistent with the Town’s Sustainability 
goals and Complete Streets Program goals as it ensures safety measures identified to provide 
safe traffic flow and encourage pedestrian and bicycle activity on Town streets. 

 
Alternatives 

N/A 

CONCLUSION 

The City Council is encouraged to ask questions about the project and provide feedback. In 
addition, the consultant welcomes observations about roadway safety concerns and 
recommendations that should be considered in the study.  

 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Project Scope of Work 
B. Project Schedule 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



SSAR Scope of Work  Page 1 of 3 
January 24, 2018

 ATTACHMENT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

The scope of services for Colma Systemic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR) project includes the 
following summary tasks and deliverables that will be undertaken by the consultant: 

Task 1 Project Management 

Subtask 1.1 Progress Meetings with Town staff over the duration of the project 
Subtask 1.2 Finalized Project Budget and Detailed Project Schedule 
Subtask 1.3 Bi-Weekly Check-In Conference Calls   

Task 1 Deliverables  
• Finalized project budget
• Detailed project schedule in Microsoft Project Format
• Up to six (6) progress meetings with agendas and meeting minutes
• Bi-weekly conference calls

Task 2 Document Review 

Subtask 2.1 Identify Documents to Review 
Subtask 2.2 Conduct Document Review 

Task 2 Deliverables 
• Summary of document review highlighting current “note-worthy practices” and

summarizing suggested methodology for the project 
• Initiate coordination with and establish coordination plan with Serramonte Boulevard

and Collins Avenue Master Plan Project and consultant team

Task 3 Data Collection 

Subtask 3.1 Crash Data 
Subtask 3.2 Roadway Characteristic Data 

o Obtaining roadway data to incorporate into systemic analysis
o Reviewing existing locations for design standards compliance

Subtask 3.3 Existing systemic countermeasures on the street network 
Subtask 3.4 Traffic count data 

Task 3 Deliverables 
Summary Data in a GIS-database including: 

• Crash data collected through SWITRS, TIMS and Police Department
• Roadway characteristics for locations being considered for safety improvements
• Traffic count report with the following information, but not limited to:

o Station identification number
o Road number
o Direction and lane; weather condition

Attachment A



SSAR Scope of Work  Page 2 of 3 
January 24, 2018 
 

Task 4 Data Analysis 
 

Subtask 4.1 Town Crash Data Analysis 
• Descriptive Crash Statistics.  
• Spatial Network Analysis 

Subtask 4.2 Identify risk factors and potential countermeasures 
Subtask 4.3 Identify initial priority locations based on Risk factors and crash data 
 

Task 4 Deliverables 
• Summary of data analysis results, with list of candidate locations with high potential for 

crashes   

Task 5 Countermeasure Selection and Stakeholder Workshop 
 

Subtask 5.1 Stakeholder Workshop #1 
Subtask 5.2 Engineering Countermeasures 
Subtask 5.3 Non-Engineering Countermeasures 
 

Task 5 Deliverables 
• Memorandum summarizing the prioritized listing of traffic safety countermeasures  
• Prepare for and conduct Stakeholder Workshop #1 

Task 6 Receive Consensus from City Council 
 

Subtask 6.1 Compile stakeholder input and update safety recommendations 
Subtask 6.2 Present updating information to City Council  
 

Task 6 Deliverables  
• Refined PowerPoint presentation addressing topics identified in Subtask 6.1 
• Prepare for and attend City Council meeting  
• Provide follow-up items from City Council meeting as identified in Subtask 6.2 

 
Task 7 Develop Safety Projects 
 

Subtask 7.1 Finalize and prioritize countermeasures and stakeholder workshop #2 
Subtask 7.2 Identify and prioritize locations for countermeasures and calculate B/C ratios 
Subtask 7.3 Develop project scopes, concept designs  
 
Task 7 Deliverables 

• Memorandum detailing prioritized safety projects. It will clearly identify: 
o Location map (beginning and ending points) of each project 
o Types of safety improvements 
o Benefit/Cost ratio for each project 
o Methodology for how the projects were selected and prioritized 

• The above memorandum will also be included in the final report, and supplemented with 
a table or similar method detailing the financial aspects of implementation, including, 



SSAR Scope of Work  Page 3 of 3 
January 24, 2018 
 

but not limited to, estimated total project cost, construction by year; expected funding 
sources and amount for each project. 

• Field reviews of high-priority locations for safety projects 

Task 8 Draft Systemic Safety Analysis Report 
 

Subtask 8.1 Prepare Draft Safety Plan and SSAR 
Subtask 8.2 Prepare for and attend City Council Meeting 
 

Task 8 Deliverables 
• PowerPoint presentation addressing overall process of traffic safety and crash data 

analysis, local issues and concerns, selection and prioritization of countermeasures, 
Benefit/Cost ratios, and recommended projects  

• Five (5) hard copies and electronic copies of the draft SSAR will be provided to the Town 

Task 9 Preliminary Engineering Design (30% Design Plans) 
 

Subtask 9.1 Draft Design Plans and Cost Estimates 
Subtask 9.2 Final Design Plans and Cost Estimates 
 

Task 9 Deliverables 
• Five (5) hard copies and electronic copies of the 30% engineering design level layout 

plans in PDF and AutoCAD formats and total project cost estimates including, but not 
limited to, right of way acquisitions, environmental review, engineering design and 
construction costs in Excel format 

Task 10 Final Systemic Safety Analysis Report 
 
Subtask 10.1 Finalize the Town Safety Plan and SSAR 
 

Task 10 Deliverables 
• Five (5) hard copies and electronic copies of the final report for review and record. The 

final report must fulfill the reporting requirements for Caltrans SSAR Program 
• Revisions to the final SSAR documentation to address Caltrans comments, if needed 

Task 11 Prepare Sample HSIP Application 
 
Subtask 11.1 Develop a sample HSIP application 
Subtask 11.2 Conduct training workshop for HSIP applications 
 

Task 11 Deliverables 
• One copy of sample HSIP grant application in Word document 

One training workshop to demonstrate Town staff on how to prepare future HSIP grant 
applications using the most current available HSIP guidelines and grant application form. 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Serramonte and Collins Avenue Master Plan Study Session  Page 1 of 6 
January 24, 2018 

STAFF REPORT

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Michael Laughlin AICP, City Planner, CSG Consultants 
Abdulkader Hashem, Associate Engineer, CSG Consultants 

VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: January 24, 2018  

SUBJECT: Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan Study Session 

RECOMMENDATION 

This item is a study session for informational purposes only. No City Council action is required; 
however, staff seeks comments, questions, impressions and opinions from each Council 
member regarding the project. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

Dyett& Bhatia was selected to prepare a Master Plan for Serramonte Boulevard and Collins 
Avenue.  The scope of work includes existing conditions mapping (currently in progress), a 
traffic analysis (currently in process), an economic analysis (currently in process), public 
outreach and the preparation of design alternatives. The final work product is a Master Plan 
with one alternative that the Town will be able to use to guide future improvements on 
Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue. The purpose of the study session is to allow the 
consultant to provide an overview of the project to the City Council and to obtain preliminary 
feedback from the City Council on existing issues in the study area.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

None. 

ANALYSIS 

The study area for the Master Plan will include all of Serramonte Boulevard from Hillside 
Boulevard to Junipero Serra Boulevard; Junipero Serra Boulevard in the vicinity of the 
Serramonte Boulevard Intersection; all of Collins Avenue; and El Camino Real between Collins 
Avenue and Serramonte Boulevard. The Master Plan improvements for both corridors are 
intended to address the following elements:  

• Economic Development Potential to support and increase commercial business
activities while creating a dynamic and sustainable business district which can respond

Item #5



Serramonte and Collins Avenue Master Plan Study Session  Page 2 of 6 
January 24, 2018 

to the changing market conditions. 
• Land Use and Urban Design elements that sustain and enhance the function and

unique identity of Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue.
• Streetscape and Traffic Improvements to provide safe, accessible, attractive,

and vibrant corridors with a cohesive design and aesthetic elements.
• Sustainability of design alternatives to promote sustainable development and green

infrastructure along the corridor.

Dyett and Bhatia has assembled a project team that includes: 

• Dyett & Bhatia – They will serve as project lead.  The primary Principal in Charge will be
Rajeev Bhatia.  The Dyett & Bhatia team will coordinate preparation and assembly of
work products, prepare urban design information, conduct community outreach and
provide project management.  The firm has worked for the Town previously, producing
the 2014 Colma Land Use and Urban Design Strategy.

• Callander Associates – Callander Associates is a well-respected Landscape Architecture
firm. They will provide landscape and design support for the project.

• W-Trans – W-Trans will conduct traffic studies and provide existing traffic data.  They
will also analyze various design scenarios for traffic feasibility.

• BAE Urban Economics – This firm worked for the with the Town previously, producing
the 2012 Economic Development Plan, so they are familiar with Colma’s unique
dynamic. For this project, BAE will analyze future market conditions and evaluate the
costs and benefits in carrying out improvements.

• BKF Engineers – This firm will conduct survey work and assemble existing utility and
topography information to prepare an existing conditions base map.  They will also be
involved in the review of various alternatives to determine construction costs.

• Zeiger Engineers – The scope of services includes an analysis of existing lighting
conditions and recommendations for new lighting. Zeiger Engineers will provide this
information as part of their involvement in the project.

The project is anticipated to take approximately a year to complete.  The consultant team is 
currently working on the existing conditions survey and compiling and analyzing traffic data 
collected before the holidays.  An existing conditions photometric survey has also been 
completed.  

Due to the holidays, staff requested that the consultant team not begin any community 
outreach until early 2018.  Initial community outreach will begin in early February.  Small, 
informal stakeholder meetings with property owners, managers and business owners are 
scheduled to take place on February 8, 2018. A copy of the letter and sample questions sent to 
managers and business owners is shown in Attachment C.  



Serramonte and Collins Avenue Master Plan Study Session  Page 3 of 6 
January 24, 2018 

Council Adopted Values 
 

The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility because it proactively 
addresses the need to improve Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue in the future. 

 
Sustainability Impact 

 
Future improvements to Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue may have a positive 
sustainability impact by adding improvements that will encourage pedestrian and bicycle activity.  
In addition, green infrastructure improvements will be considered. 
 
Alternatives 

N/A 

CONCLUSION 

Upon conclusion of the presentation, staff recommends that the City Council ask the consultant, 
Dyett & Bhatia, questions about the project.  In addition, the consultant welcomes observations 
about current conditions in the study area that should be considered in the study.  To guide the 
discussion, the consultant has included the following questions for City Council: 

 
1. What’s working well on Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue today?  
2. What do you think are the greatest challenges facing these Corridors today?   
3. What is your vision/ what are your priorities for how the Corridors should develop or 

change over the next 20 years? What do you think will be the key challenges along the 
Corridors in that time period? 

4. Where do you consider to be the most problematic “hot spots” within the study area? 
Think about safety (for people driving and on foot), congestion, and similar concerns. 
Show us on the map.  

5. Please tell us what you like and what you dislike about each of these photos. 
 
ATTACHMENTS 

A. Project Scope of Work 
B. Project Schedule 
C. Letter and questions sent to businesses for focus groups 

 
 
 
  



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Serramonte and Collins Avenue Master Plan Study Session  Page 4 of 6 
January 24, 2018 

ATTACHMENT A 
SCOPE OF WORK 

The scope of services for this project includes the following elements: 

1. Economic Development:
• Analyze the current market situation for auto and retail uses, create projections

for future growth and changes, and identify potential development opportunities
within the study area.

• Provide strategies on how to respond to changing market conditions as well as
evolving needs of the auto industry.

• Analyze the costs and benefits of implementing a comprehensive streetscape
improvement plan in the study area and weighs the projected cost of public
improvements with anticipated additional investment and added revenue
generation to offset improvement costs.

• Prepare a list of financing and funding options which explain how the costs of
improvements within the study area can be funded.  This should include both
public and private funding options.

• Produce a summary of conclusions and recommendations about the nature and
feasibility of implementing the Preferred Alternative within the study area.

2. Land Use/ Urban Design
• Prepare urban design guidelines for improvements in the public realm to include

public infrastructure and facilities, transportation networks and linkages while
considering sustainable design.

• Develop three (3) distinct conceptual alternative plans which clearly show the
range, type and extent of uniform and high-quality urban design plans to
strengthen the local characteristics of Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue.

• Prepare cost estimate for each alternative.

3. Traffic Study/ Circulation
The Consultant shall become familiar with existing traffic, circulation and access in the
study area, and shall provide an analysis of the roadway, parking, bicycle and pedestrian
circulation system which incorporates but is not limited to the following components:

• Perform traffic counts for vehicular, pedestrian, bicycle and other modes of traffic
and analyze these traffic movements at the major intersections, roadways and
turning into and out of adjacent businesses (driveway counts) within the study
area during weekday and weekend peak hours.

• Review pedestrian access along the corridors, including identification of
recommended improvements to sidewalks, signage, lighting, crosswalks,
intersection configuration and other safety factors.

• Review bicycle usage along the corridors and identify appropriate strategies to
improve bicycle safety and access.

Attachment A



Serramonte and Collins Avenue Master Plan Study Session  Page 5 of 6 
January 24, 2018 

• Prepare 10-year traffic projections for each intersection. 
• Analyze existing levels of service. 
• Analyze queuing at major intersections. 
• Make recommendations on intersection improvements: Serramonte Boulevard & 

Junipero Serra Boulevard, Serramonte Boulevard & Collins Avenue, Serramonte 
Boulevard & El Camino Real, Serramonte Boulevard & Hillside Boulevard and 
Collins Avenue & El Camino Real. 

• Develop recommended strategies to improve traffic circulation, turning 
movements into businesses, and provide safe and accessible roadway network 
for the vehicles, pedestrians, bicyclists, motorcyclists and transit users in 
compliance with Town’s Complete Street policies described in the 2014 
Circulation Element of the General Plan. 

• Evaluate the feasibility of providing a connector between Serramonte Boulevard 
and Collins Avenue. 

• Analyze impact of reducing Serramonte Boulevard into one lane in each direction 
with a center turn lane. 

 
4. Sustainability Considerations 

• Implement sustainability best practices within Master Plan elements and 
development regulations. 

• Develop a “Green Street” concept for the corridors. 
• Ensure efficient vehicular circulation and create an accessible multimodal 

transportation environment. 

The proposed scope of work is intended to provide useful information that the Town will be able 
to utilize in the future. Specifically: 
 

• Traffic Counts:  The Town’s current traffic information is from 2013, and is becoming less 
useful over time.   The new counts for the study area will be useful for the Town and 
future environmental review work for years to come. In addition, the traffic information 
will include valuable driveway counts along the corridor.  

 
• Survey Information: The consultants will be preparing a GIS (Geographic Information 

System) base layer that will include utilities, property lines, topography and other 
information that can be used to develop construction drawings.  

The Consultant shall be responsible for undertaking the following tasks, summarized below: 
 

• Task 1: Project Management 
• Task 2: Project Rollout to the City Council 
• Task 3: Community Outreach and Public Participation    
• Task 4: Existing Conditions Survey 
• Task 5: Pre-Design Project Meeting with Town Staff 
• Task 6: Stakeholder Kick-Off Meeting 



Serramonte and Collins Avenue Master Plan Study Session  Page 6 of 6 
January 24, 2018 

• Task 7: Preliminary Concept Presentation at Council Meeting 
• Task 8: Concept Design Development 
• Task 9: Community Meeting  
• Task 10: Final Concept Design Selection 
• Task 11: Final Master Plan 

 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Stakeholder Interviews

Community Workshop City Council Meeting

Consultant E�ort Product 

Sta� Meeting

Preliminary 
Recommendations 

Memo

Final Work Plan/
Schedule

NEWS Survey

NEWS

Urban Design
Memo

Survey
Memo

Market
Memo

Design 
Concept Plans

Economic 
Feasibility 

Assessment
Admin Draft 
Master Plan

Final
Master Plan

Cost/Bene�t
Analysis

Tra�c 
Study

Online
Survey

Stakeholder
Interviews

Public Review
 Draft 

Master Plan

Tasks

Project Management

Project Rollout to the Town Council 

Community Outreach & 
Public Participation

Existing Conditions Survey

Pre-Design 

Preliminary Options for 
Stakeholder Review

Preliminary Concepts for 
Town Council Review

Concept Design Development

1

2

3

4

5

6

7

8

Community Meeting9

Final Concept Design Selection 10

Final Master Plan11

Schedule
Town of Colma Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan 

July Aug. Sep.Oct.

2017 2018

Nov. Dec. Jan.            Feb.               Mar.              Apr.             May June      Oct.

Attachment B



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



January 18, 2018 

Name 
Title 
Company 
Address 
City, CA  Zip 

Re:  Colma Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan 

Dear [Stakeholder]: 

The Town of Colma has initiated preparation of a Master Plan for Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue. The 
Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan will outline a cohesive, long-term community-driven plan 
for this key commercial corridor. The Plan will provide guidance for strategic improvements to circulation, 
streetscape, infrastructure, and aesthetics to improve the overall design and function of this important business 
center in the years to come.  

Some of the initial objectives identified for the Master Plan include: 

• Streetscape and Traffic Improvements. Carry out streetscape and traffic improvements to provide safe,
accessible, attractive, and vibrant corridors with a cohesive design and aesthetic elements.

• Economic Development. Support and increase commercial business activities while fostering a dynamic
and sustainable business district that can respond to changing market conditions.

• Land Use and Urban Design. Incorporate land use and urban design elements that sustain and enhance
the function and unique identity of Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue.

• Sustainability. Create design alternatives that promote sustainable development and green infrastructure 
along the corridor.

For the plan to be successful, we need collaboration between all stakeholders—local businesses, property owners, 
residents, decision-makers, and others. We are seeking input from a range of stakeholders to gain insight into 
their experiences, desires, and issues of concern related to preparation of the Master Plan.  

The stakeholder interviews will approximately 45 minutes and will be held on February 8, 2018. Please contact 
Lia Vang by January 26, 2018 with times you are available on February 8, 2018.  Lia can be reached at (650) 757-
8888 or lia.vang@colma.ca.gov. We will meet at the Colma Police Department. 

If you have questions regarding this project or your role as a project stakeholder, please contact me at (650) 757-
8896 or michael.laughlin@colma.ca.gov. Thank you for your assistance with this very exciting project!  We look 
forward to working with you. 

Sincerely, 

Michael P. Laughlin, AICP 
Contract City Planner 

Attachment C



Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan 

Stakeholder Meetings 

February 8, 2018 

 

Sample Interview Questions   

This is an opportunity for you to share your ideas, issues, and concerns in a candid fashion with the project 
consultants, Dyett & Bhatia, that have been retained by the Town of Colma. The meetings will be individual or in 
small groups of two to four people. A summary report from the meetings will be prepared, but quotes and 
opinions will not be attributed to specific individuals.  

While there is not a fixed format for the interview questions, following are some of the questions that will be 
pursued. This list may be modified depending on the specific interests of the individual or group.  

Challenges and Opportunities  

1. What’s working well on Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue today?  

2. What do you think are the greatest challenges facing these Corridors today?   

3. What is your vision/ what are your priorities for how these Corridors should develop or change over the 
next 20 years? What do you think will be the key challenges along the Corridors in that time period? 

Transportation and Parking 

1. Where would you say the majority of your employees and patrons are coming from? 

2. There is limited space on the roadway to accommodate different features and modes of travel: vehicle/truck 
travel lanes, sidewalks, bicycles, parking, medians, turn lanes, and landscaping. Is the space allocated 
appropriately now? What changes would you like to see? 

3. Where do you consider to be the most problematic “hot spots” within our study area? Think about safety (for 
people driving and on foot), congestion, and similar concerns. Show us on the map.  

4. What types of streetscape improvements would you like to see along the Corridor? Think about elements that 
would contribute to the creation of a unique identity along the Corridor such as gateway elements, lighting, 
landscaping, street furniture etc.  

5. What improvements are needed to improve connections to the Corridor from the surrounding area?  

6. Are your property/ business’s parking and loading needs currently being met?  

Economic Development (auto dealers) 

1. What is the current status of the regional auto sales market, and what are the major challenges that Colma 
auto dealers face to remain competitive in the coming years? 

 
2. Given the realities of the competitive market, what is a realistic percentage that overall auto sales in Colma 

could increase over the next 10 years, under favorable circumstances? 



 
3. Thinking about the range of factors, including evolving technologies, such as autonomous cars, car sharing 

services, etc., and how those changes may affect traditional car dealers, how do dealers expect their local 
operations to change over time? 

 
4. Given answers to prior question, what kinds of things can Colma do to help local auto dealers remain 

competitive and relevant? 
a. Short term – next 1 to 5 years 
b. Longer term – 6 years and beyond 

 
5. What kinds of public improvements will generate the best return on investment in terms of supporting 

increased auto sales [or, for non-auto oriented businesses, general sales] over time? 
 

Wrap-up 

1. Do you have any other ideas or concerns that we haven’t asked about?  

 

 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



Sterling Park Recreation Center Improvements – Concept Design 
January 24, 2018 Page 1 of 3 

STAFF REPORT 

TO: Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM: Brad Donohue, Public Works Director, CSG Consultants 
Jonathan Kwan, Assistant Planner, CSG Consultants 

VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: January 24, 2018 

SUBJECT:  Sterling Park Recreation Center Improvements – Concept Design 

RECOMMENDATION 

Staff recommends that the City Council by motion: 

APPROVE A CONCEPT DESIGN TO EXPAND THE PLAYGROUND, PICNIC AREA AND 
CREATE EXCERCISE STATIONS AT STERLING PARK RECREATION CENTER.  

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

With the heavy and constant use of the existing playground equipment and the lack of use or 
non-use of the existing bocce ball court at the Sterling Park Recreation Center, staff is 
recommending that City Council consider removing the existing bocce ball court and expand the 
playground structure, picnic/BBQ area and walking path around the play structure (See 
Attachment A). The proposed project also includes four exercise areas along the walking path of 
grass area that fronts E Street (See Attachment B) 

Tonight’s presentation is to bring to the City Council and members of the public a conceptual 
design that shows the expansion of the playground structure area and proposed exercise stations 
along the walkway that fronts the E Street part of Sterling Park. The objective seeks City Councils 
approval and direct staff to complete the plans and specifications for the Sterling Park 
enhancements.  

FISCAL IMPACT 

Review and approval the proposed design and selection of preferred playground and exercise 
equipment will not have a direct impact on the Town’s Budget now. Details and estimates 
regarding project costs will be provided when City Council approves the final plan and project 
specifications.  

Item #6



Sterling Park Recreation Center Improvements – Concept Design 
January 24, 2018  Page 2 of 3 
 

BACKGROUND 

In 2001-2002 City Council approved the expansion of the Sterling Park Recreation Center. In that 
expansion effort, the park was renovated to feature a playground structure that was tailored to 
accommodate children from the ages of 5 to 12 years old. Within the park a bocce ball court was 
also constructed adjacent to the playground structure. Over the years the playground structure 
and picnic area has served residents on casual drop ins, scheduled children parties at the Center 
and is a feature that is used constantly when the Recreation Department hosts its afterschool and 
summer camp programs. The bocce ball court was installed in hopes that it would rally adults 
and seniors to also enjoy recreation features at the Park. Over the years the Playground has been 
well received and now needs a face lift. Because the playground has been a huge success and 
the bocce ball court has not been well received over the years, it is recommended that City Council 
review the concept design of the playground and picnic area expansion over what is now the 
bocce ball court.  

The intent of the bocce ball court was a good attempt to allow the Park to be inclusive and serve 
residents of all ages, children, adults and seniors. Staff is also proposing that with the removal of 
the bocce ball court the City Council approve exercise stations along the walking path of the grass 
area that fronts E Street. These small exercise stations (typically 8 feet wide by 12 feet plus or 
minus long) when they become part of a walking course is called a “par course”. The par course 
will allow residents to not only walk the Park area but also participate in simple exercise regiments 
at the various stations.   

The upgrade to the Playground area along with exercise components to the grass walking path 
is an attempt to provide play and exercise opportunities for all that visit.  

ANALYSIS 

When the first Sterling Park expansion project took place in 2001-2002, the Town purchased 
Columbia Cascade “Pipeline” playground equipment from Park Pacific.  The Columbia Cascade 
“Pipeline” playground structure and various play apparatus are installed on support structures 
made up of steel posts that are set in a foundation approximately 2-3 feet below the play surface. 
The 17-year-old play structure and rubberized play surface are showing higher levels of wear and 
tear and are in need of replacement. If the City Council approves the removal of the bocce ball 
court, the Town has an opportunity to expand the playground and picnic area to accommodate 
an additional play structure as well as two new picnic tables and a new barbecue.  

The removal of the bocce ball court is recommended, as the monthly and annual cost to keep the 
court in good shape has become a wasted effort due to the fact that the bocce ball court is 
underutilized. Not to overlook the various adults who still come to the park to walk and socialize, 
it is recommended that City Council consider installing several exercise stations along the concrete 
path way around the grass area of the park that fronts E Street. These exercise areas are small 
workout stations that enable adults and even children to perform stretching exercises, sit-ups, 
pull-ups and other basic exercise routines.   

When the City Council approved staff to sole source the playground structure and equipment that 
enabled us to keep the heart of the structure and simply change out and upgrade the play 
equipment. It also allowed us to add to the existing structure without tearing out or removing the 
old, we can utilize what’s there and add to it. The proposed playground design assumes a generic 
playground theme to be inclusive and appeal to all children. Additionally, the proposed play 



Sterling Park Recreation Center Improvements – Concept Design 
January 24, 2018  Page 3 of 3 
 

surface includes a number of play features designed to meet accessibility standards so those with 
disabilities can enjoy and participate in the playground experience. It is also situated in way that 
meets the required fall zone protection, creating a safe space between the hard concrete surfaces 
of the walkways and street furniture structures and the play area.  

Council Adopted Values 

The recommendation is consistent with the City Council’s value of responsibility, the proposed 
design and project has been carefully reviewed so that it will serve the interest for the young and 
old. 

Sustainability Impact 

There are several items in this project that meet the Town’s sustainability goals and objectives. 
Reusing the old playground structure and joining it with the new structure allows the Town to 
use what is still good and not have to demolish and discard. The rubberized surface on the play 
structure are is constructed or made from old tires. The use of this product is innovative in such 
a way that it uses what was once a discard or a landfill item and creates a surface that provides 
a safe fall zone that meets todays public park standards.  

Alternatives 

The following courses of action are available to the City Council: 

1. Approve the concept design with modifications; or 

2. Deny the request to approve a concept design for the Sterling Park Recreation Center 
Improvements project. This alternative is not recommended because it would delay the 
project and need to be reconsidered next year. Starting this project to late would or could 
compromise the Summer Camp program. 

CONCLUSION 

Staff recommends that the City Council motions to approve the concept design to expand the 
playground and picnic area along with the exercise stations at the Sterling Park Recreation Center. 

ATTACHMENTS 

A. Plan Design concept for Playground Structure  
B. Fitness Station Renderings 
C. Playground Renderings 





\\s
er

ve
r2

.c
sg

.lo
c\

C
lie

nt
s\

D
E

S
IG

N
\1

7.
4X

X 
- C

ol
m

a 
S

te
rli

ng
 P

ar
k 

R
ec

 C
en

te
r\C

A
D

\0
1-

Ti
tle

 s
he

et
.d

w
g@

 0
9:

24
:2

2 
A

M

 01/10/18 @  09:24:22 AMPlotted on:

Attachment A



\\s
er

ve
r2

.c
sg

.lo
c\

C
lie

nt
s\

D
E

S
IG

N
\1

7.
4X

X 
- C

ol
m

a 
S

te
rli

ng
 P

ar
k 

R
ec

 C
en

te
r\C

A
D

\0
2-

D
em

o.
dw

g@
 0

9:
19

:2
2 

A
M

 01/10/18 @  09:19:22 AMPlotted on:



\\s
er

ve
r2

.c
sg

.lo
c\

C
lie

nt
s\

D
E

S
IG

N
\1

7.
4X

X 
- C

ol
m

a 
S

te
rli

ng
 P

ar
k 

R
ec

 C
en

te
r\C

A
D

\0
3-

Im
pr

ov
em

en
t.d

w
g@

 0
9:

25
:4

4 
A

M

 01/10/18 @  09:25:44 AMPlotted on:



\\s
er

ve
r2

.c
sg

.lo
c\

C
lie

nt
s\

D
E

S
IG

N
\1

7.
4X

X 
- C

ol
m

a 
S

te
rli

ng
 P

ar
k 

R
ec

 C
en

te
r\C

A
D

\0
4-

 D
ra

in
ag

e 
&

 U
til

ity
.d

w
g@

 0
9:

26
:4

5 
A

M

 01/10/18 @  09:26:45 AMPlotted on:



\\s
er

ve
r2

.c
sg

.lo
c\

C
lie

nt
s\

D
E

S
IG

N
\1

7.
4X

X 
- C

ol
m

a 
S

te
rli

ng
 P

ar
k 

R
ec

 C
en

te
r\C

A
D

\0
5-

 B
M

P
.d

w
g@

 0
9:

27
:1

3 
A

M

 01/10/18 @  09:27:13 AMPlotted on:





Fitness Station 
Renderings

Attachment B



Proposed 
Playground 
Improvements

Proposed 
Fitness Station
Locations



Option A – Leg Flex



Option B – Body Pull



Option C – Sit Up



Option D – Push-Off



Option E – Leg-Over



Option F – Arm Walk



Playground Renderings

Attachment C



Option A  
Bridge



Option A – Bridge



Option A – Bridge



Option B 
Chain 
Climber



Option B – Chain Climber



Option B – Chain Climber



Playground Features

1

2
3

4

5

7

8

0

9

6



1 2



3 4



5 6



7 8



9 0



Staff Report – 2018 Adult Holiday Event  Page 1 of 4 
January 24, 2018 

STAFF REPORT

TO:    Mayor and Members of the City Council 

FROM:  Cynthia Morquecho, Recreation Manager 

VIA:  Brian Dossey, City Manager 

MEETING DATE: January 24, 2018 

SUBJECT: 2018 Adult Holiday Event 

STAFF RECOMMENDATION 

MOTION DIRECTING CITY MANAGER TO PLAN AND COORDINATE AN ADULT HOLIDAY EVENT 
AT THE SOUTH SAN FRANCISCO CONFERENCE CENTER ON DECEMBER 8, 2018; TO 
DETERMINE THE GUEST LIST FOR THE ADULT HOLIDAY EVENT; TO SET THE PARTICIPATION 
FEE FOR THE ADULT HOLIDAY EVENT AT $15 FOR ADULTS AND $10 FOR SENIORS AND 
DISABLED; AND TO PLAN AND COORDINATE THE ANNUAL TOWN PICNIC FOR SEPTEMBER 8, 
2018. 

EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

In December 2017 the Recreation Services Department planned and coordinated the Adult 
Holiday Event for the third time since 2008.  Due to participation and resident feedback, staff 
recommends that the City Council adopt a motion directing the City Manager to host the Adult 
Holiday Event in 2018. 

Staff is recommending the event be held at the South San Francisco Conference Center, and 
has December 8, 2018 on temporary hold pending City Council direction.     

Due to the cost of the Adult Holiday Event and the policies surrounding how the Recreation 
Services Department sets participation fees, staff is recommending the City Council temporarily 
amend the fee structure for the Adult Holiday Event making it more affordable for the residents 
to participate. 

Also, based on participation and resident feedback, staff is recommending the City Council 
direct the City Manager to plan and coordinate the annual Town Picnic.  The picnic has been the 
Town’s signature community event for the past several years. 

FISCAL IMPACT 

Staff estimates a Holiday Event at the South San Francisco Conference Center for adults and 
seniors to cost $34,440.    

Item #7



Staff Report – 2018 Adult Holiday Event   Page 2 of 4 
January 24, 2018 

 

Staff estimates the Town Picnic at the Sterling Park Recreation Center to cost $18,000. 

By hosting both events in Fiscal Year 2018-19, staff estimates an increase of approximately 
$3,524 to the Recreation expenditures budget.  Staff is increasing each program in anticipation 
of higher costs from vendors in 2018 and additions to entertainment during the Adult Holiday 
Event. 

BACKGROUND 

Due to the recession, the Adult Holiday Event was cancelled from 2009 – 2014.  In 2015, 2016 
and 2017, City Council directed the City Manager to host the Adult Holiday Event at the South 
San Francisco Conference Center.   

The South San Francisco Conference Center is an ideal location for the Adult Holiday Event for 
the following reasons: 

• Proximity to Colma 
• Ability to accommodate 250 people 
• Diversity and flexibility of menu options 
• Sufficient parking and transportation accommodations 
• Ability to provide quiet area 
• Willingness to work with budget  

 

Based on the research that was conducted in 2017, and resident feedback, staff recommends 
the South San Francisco Conference Center host the 2018 Adult Holiday Event. 

2017 Adult Holiday Event Re-cap 

The 2017 Adult Holiday Event was very successful.  Approximately 222 residents and staff 
participated, and staff received many positive comments.  Participants enjoyed hand passed 
appetizers, buffet dinner, complimentary wine, photo booth, DJ dancing and a quiet lounge 
area with hot chocolate and cookies. The total cost for the Adult Holiday Event was $31,724; 
$2,524 over budget.  The reason for the costs being over budget is due to unanticipated 
increased conference center costs.  

ANALYSIS 

Adult Holiday Event 

South San Francisco Conference Center 

Based on the reasons stated in the background section of this report, its availability and 
willingness to work with the Town, staff is recommending the South San Francisco Conference 
Center as the venue for the 2018 Adult Holiday Event.  Staff met with the Catering Manager at 
the Conference Center, and has Meeting rooms A-E (same rooms as 2016 & 2017) and the 
Baden Room (Lounge) on temporary hold pending City Council direction. 

The Conference Center is also prepared to offer the same (or similar) menu for a slightly higher 
fee from 2017; costs are estimated to go up in 2018.   

Staff estimates the cost of the event at the Conference Center to be $34,440 with 250 
participants.  This is an increase of $2,716 from the 2017 Adult Holiday Event.  Based on 250 
participants, the per person charge will be $139.00.  



Staff Report – 2018 Adult Holiday Event   Page 3 of 4 
January 24, 2018 

 

Based on the success of summer concerts and positive feedback from residents, staff proposes 
adding a live band as entertainment. Removing the Prime Rib station to reduce the food & 
beverage cost will subsequently help to offset the overall cost, and provide the amount needed 
to hire a live band in replacement of DJ.  

 
Item 2017 Actual 

Cost 
2018 

Proposed 
Cost 

Marketing Materials (flyers, invites, postage, etc.) $445.26 $600 
Food & Beverage (appetizers, buffet dinner, desserts, cash 
bar and SSF Conference Center charges) 

$27,439 $25,940 

Decorations (centerpieces and pop up lighted displays) $800 $800 
Entertainment (DJ) $1,000 $5,000 
Transportation $2,040 $2,100 
TOTAL $31,724 $34,440 

 
Historically, the adult holiday event has been made available to Colma residents, Town staff, 
Colma Fire Protection District members and contract staff (i.e. CSG, BB&K, and recreation 
instructors). Are there any other invitees that should be considered? Based on the 250-person 
established guest list, staff can accommodate additional guests. If there are other invitees that 
are considered, costs may also increase. 
 
Under the Recreation Services Department fee structure, the cost of this program would be $80 
(60 percent of cost) for adults and $40 (30 percent of cost) for seniors and disabled.  This is 
because the event is open to adults and seniors only and is not being held at a Town facility.  
Based on the cost to the resident, staff has concerns over meeting minimum registration 
requirements.   

Staff recommends the City Council temporarily amend the fee structure for the Adult Holiday 
Event making it more affordable for the residents to participate.  There is a provision in the 
Administration Code (section 2.01.085) that allows for temporary guidelines.  Staff recommends 
the participation fee to be $15 for adults and $10 for seniors making it affordable for maximum 
participation. 

Town Picnic 

Over the past several years the Town Picnic has been the Town’s signature community event, 
and at one point there was discussion of alternating the picnic with the Adult Holiday Event; 
however, there was concern over the picnic losing its appeal if it was alternated from year to 
year.  Therefore in 2016 and 2017 staff was able to downsize the picnic, and reduce the cost to 
$16,000 in 2016 and $17,000 in 2017. Since the introduction of the adult holiday event, staff 
has downsized and successfully hosted the annual Town of Colma picnic event.   

Staff estimates the Town Picnic at the Sterling Park Recreation Center can be coordinated again 
in 2018 at a cost of $18,000. The increase is to make way for anticipated increased vendor 
costs.   

 

 



Staff Report – 2018 Adult Holiday Event   Page 4 of 4 
January 24, 2018 

 

Council Adopted Values 

Per policy, the Recreation Services Department activities are planned and coordinated so all 
programs are offered to the community equitably.  Due to the recent recession, the Adult 
Holiday Event was canceled for several years creating an imbalance to programs offered to the 
community.  By approving the recommendation to host an Adult Holiday Event and Town Picnic 
in 2018, the City Council would be making the responsible decision, once again offering 
programs equitably to all populations.  

Sustainability Impact 

Staff coordinates and implements program and activities which are in alignment with the 
Town’s Climate Action Plan and Sustainability Policy.  For example, all invitations and flyers are 
printed on recycled paper products, and staff will reuse holiday decorations that were 
purchased in 2015.  Also, when food and beverages are provided, staff uses recyclable products 
to serve the food. 

Alternatives 

1. Do not increase the budget, and continue to host Annual events at current budget.  
2. Do not host an Adult Holiday Event and instead Host the Annual Town Picnic in 2017. 

SUMMARY 

Based on participation and feedback staff is recommending City Council direct the City Manager 
to coordinate an Adult Holiday Event and Town Picnic in 2018, and to firm up the December 8, 
2018 reservation at the South San Francisco Conference Center for the Adult Holiday Event.   

Due to the cost of the Adult Holiday Event and the policies surrounding how the Recreation 
Services Department sets participation fees, staff is recommending the City Council to 
temporarily amend the fee structure for the Adult Holiday Event making it more affordable for 
the residents to participate. 

 
 
 


	01.24.18 Regular Meeting Agenda
	1. Closed Session - Employee Performance, City Manager
	2. Second Reading - PEG Fees Ordinance
	3. Regular Meeting Minutes 01.10.18
	4. Colma Systematic Safety Analysis Report (SSAR)
	Attachment A
	Attachment B

	5. Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue Master Plan Study Session
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	6. Sterling Park Recreation Center Improvements - Concept Design
	Attachment A
	Attachment B
	Attachment C

	7. 2018 Adult Holiday Party
	Serramonte Blvd Study Session SR with Attachment A 012418.pdf
	RECOMMENDATION
	EXECUTIVE SUMMARY
	The recommendation is consistent with the Council value of responsibility because it proactively addresses the need to improve Serramonte Boulevard and Collins Avenue in the future.

	CONCLUSION




